
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                            November 7, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 3 

City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

                      Special Meeting 
November 7, 2006 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on November 7, 2006, at 6 p.m. in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Combs called the meeting to order at 6:24 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
   
 Jim Wood  John Combs 
 Tony Pippel  Kathrine Vanover 
          
Also in attendance were the following: 
 

 Tom Healy, City Manager 
Jack Snodgrass, City Attorney 

 Janette Bower, City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Wood. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Council Member Pippel asked that the agenda reflect “proposed” annexation rather than 
“anticipated”. Attorney Snodgrass recommended that the item remain as advertised on the 
agenda and asked that the record reflect the request. 
 
Council Member Wood asked that item F.2. be stricken from the agenda. Attorney Snodgrass 
explained the parameters under Robert’s Rules of Order for objection to discussion of an item.  
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
 
Chris Keppler spoke of his area residence and meeting with Borough Mayor Menard. He voiced 
concern over the proposed prison site. He stated that area residences are working together to 
form a campaign against the prison. Mr. Keppler described his primary objections to the prison 
as light pollution, prison as a neighbor, and the probability of an airstrip having to be closed. 
 
Tony Cox spoke of the grass roots organization formed to respond to the upcoming public 
hearing on the new prison site. He stated that the organization represents the majority of the 
population south of Palmer. Mr. Cox spoke of subdivisions affected by phase I of the annexation 
and the expected outcry of the residents. He spoke of the need to provide for further justification 
for the annexation and the study which indicated a negative fiscal effect.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                            November 7, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 3 

David Jenkins voiced opposition to the annexation and raised concern over the negative impact 
to area residents. He stated that the residents do not need water and sewer and reported on the 
low crime levels. Mr. Jenkins stated that the residents support the City by shopping in the City. 
He voiced objection to the new prison site and stated that the issue should be looked at as a 
quality of life matter. He asked that in an effort to lessen the danger to residents, an area away 
from people be considered as a prison site. He asked if the City had a position on the prison site.  
 
Stuart Felberg spoke of his residence in Grand View Subdivision. He objected to the manner in 
which the annexation, utility line and prison selection had been handled by the City. He voiced 
agreement with Mr. Jenkins, stating the quality of life issue was most important. He voiced 
objection to the prison site and stated his desire for area residents to be notified of the proposed 
site. He stated that should the prison be located south of Palmer, the prison would be in 
everyone’s backyard.  
 
Scott Sanderson spoke in opposition to the annexation, stating that he has not heard of any 
benefit to residents. He stated that residents in the proposed area have their own water and sewer. 
Mr. Sanderson explained the trails on his property and operation of a burn barrel. He spoke of 
the need to obtain building permits and stated that the City should pay attention to the current 
City boundaries. Mr. Sanderson commented on the letter written by Council Member’s Hanson 
and Pippel regarding the City’s business model and anticipation of eliminating positions. He 
spoke of the Mayor’s new position and the seven positions in the Parks and Recreation 
Department. He commented on the current Ice Arena debt and stated that all areas of the City 
budget that should be examined.  
 
Ken Ulrich stated that he had been a commercial pilot for over 50 years and that safety has been 
in the forefront of his mind his entire life. He protested the placement of the prison for the 
following reasons: the selected site is 1500 feet from the pickup point for school children, the 
possibility of an earthquake and tsunami of great magnitude, location in an area with a greater 
mosquito population and the spread of disease by the mosquitoes, and area traffic. He stated that 
if the prison is located in the Palmer area, it would stigmatize the image of Palmer. 
 
Greg Dellinger asked that Dellinger Estates be excluded from the annexation. He asked that 
during the annexation discussion, the annexation process be clearly identified. Mr. Dellinger 
stated that the council was sending mixed messages regarding Council Member’s Hanson and 
Pippel’s memo. He stated that annexation should be bit off one bite at a time and stated that the 
council should take care of the City as it exists at this time. He commented on proposed prison 
site and the tourists who would view the facility in a negative manner.  
 
Frank Wall spoke of his Coast Guard career and described Palmer as one of the most beautiful 
places he had ever visited. He spoke of his pride in the community and desire to leave a legacy of 
pride in the community. He voiced objection to the prison, stating that there would be a negative 
impact on the healthy growth of the community. Mr. Wall stated that the gravel pits have 
ruptured the water table and caused flooding of area properties. He stated that the prison site 
does not show Alaska at it best. Mr. Wall asked that the council consider the community as a 
whole and not the economic impact of a prison. 
 
Stephanie Figon stated that her front door would be one mile from the front door of the prison. 
She spoke of her children and her previous desire to raise the children in the area. She spoke of 
the security levels and the 50 percent recidivism rate. Ms. Figon spoke of the additional 
community victims because of the decisions being made to place the facility in the area. She 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                            November 7, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 3 of 3 

stated that the prison would be detrimental to tourism and property values in South Palmer. Ms. 
Figon expanded on her willingness to pack up and move and asked what the new residents would 
think of the area. She stated that the property values would decrease and there would be a 
permanent eye sore in the community.  
 
Scott Luce stated that he and his wife and four children are in the area of the proposed prison. He 
voiced concern of the project’s magnitude and of the negative impact to the community. He 
voiced his discouragement over trying to get straight answers on matters such as the prison and 
waterline. He voiced the comments made by area residents who have stated that the Borough and 
City Mayors would not let a prison site come into the area. He expressed the faith the residents 
have in the two mayors.  
  
F. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 06-121: Authorize City Manager to Purchase a Custom 
Contender Pumper from Pierce Manufacturing, Inc. and Hughes Fire Equipment, Inc. Using a 
Joint Purchasing Agreement in the Amount of $257,296 
MOVED BY: Pippel 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To accept the action of action memorandum 0-121 

 

VOTE ON MOTION:  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Vanover Wood    
Combs      

 
Item 2 – Discussion of Anticipated City of Palmer Annexation (Action may be taken by the 
Council following the Committee of the Whole) 
MOVED BY: Vanover 
SECONDED BY: Pippel 

To enter into a committee of the whole 

 

VOTE ON MOTION:  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Pippel Vanover Wood    
Combs      

 
Mayor Combs introduced Mr. Lamar Cotten, the consultant hired to prepare the annexation 
petition.  
 
G. ADJOURNMENT 
 

With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:09 p.m.  
 
APPROVED THIS twenty-first day of November, 2006. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
       John C. Combs, Mayor  
 
___________________________________ 
Janette M. Bower, CMC, City Clerk  

jbower
signature

jbower
signature



